Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, SEVENTY-SIXTH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, October 24, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-428) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the October 21, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 426 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
October 17, 2025 minutes

Motion 25 427 | To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session

for 15 minutes to discuss legal advice regarding insurance which
would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship
pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-

meeting will resume at 10:19 A.M. The motion passed 3-0

Page 1 of 8

4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim
Emerson, Sheriff Billy Tomasi, Undersheriff Jason VanBecelaere, and
Human Resources/Finance Officer Adam Harrison present. The open




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. Ross Martinson addressed the Commissioners. He stated they have a
problem in Farlington with county roads having no signs. He mentioned with 7 Highway
being closed the traffic has increased on these roads. Mr. Martinson stated trucks are
speeding through these intersections and that people are unaware who has the right of
way at the intersections as well. Commissioner Moody stated they can have the sign
foreman go and mark the intersections. Commissioner Blair stated he has looked into this
previously and that there is T signs but no stop signs but he could not remember the
reason for this. Commissioner Blair stated the sign foreman has a rule book to follow
when it comes to these situations and also explained if the speed limit is not marked it is
55 mph. Commissioner Blair explained to place stop signs or alter speed limit they would
have to pass a resolution. Commissioner Blair asked about the unmarked intersections
and Mr. Martinson explained. Commissioner Moody stated they will get the Sherrif’s
Department involved and contact Sign Foreman Dale Shireman. Mr. Martinson discussed
some brush impairing the sight on one intersection and Commissioner Blair stated they
can take care of the brush.

Item Two: Ms. Phyllis Polnack addressed the Commissioners. She discussed the fire
department in Mulberry and how it runs off of mutual aid. Ms. Polnack stated she does
not feel like they need to annex property and claim they are going to protect it by mutual
aid and that they need to have a plan of their own for protection. She discussed the
special fire equipment that they mentioned could be purchased and that they will have to
house it in Arma. Commissioner Wood asked if Ms. Polnack has checked in to the
possibility of housing insurance increasing if next to a solar farm and she stated she has
not done any research on this.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: Communications Director Tim Mikrut requested an executive session for 15
minutes to discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-429) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
job performance pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1),
to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County
Counselor Jim Emerson, and Communications Director Tim Mikrut attended the
executive session. The open meeting will resume at 10:29 AM. The Motion passed 3-0.
Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Page 2 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:14 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:28 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC CONTINUED

Item Three: Ms. Judy Prince addressed the Commissioners. She asked if the public
hearing for the land annexation has been set yet and Mr. Emerson answered that it will be
addressed later in the meeting.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Communications Director Tim Mikrut addressed the Commissioners. He
stated he is here to give an update on the outdoor warning and siren grants. He mentioned
all applications have been accepted by FEMA and it will be about a 3 month wait to get a
response. Commissioner Wood asked if this is for the first 6 sirens and Mr. Mikrut
explained this is for all the projects.

EXECUTIVE SESSION CONTINUED

Item Two: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 20
minutes to discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client
Relationship.

On motion (25-430) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 20 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding land annexation which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson present
and Mr. Joshua Albin present via telephone. The open meeting will resume at 10:55 A.M.
The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:35 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:55 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

NEW BUSINESS
Item One: County Clerk Lisa Lusker stated Director of Fiscal Services Randi Ryan has

requested a 15-minute work session to discuss ARPA on Tuesday October 28™ at 9:45
AM. The Commissioners agreed.

Page 3 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item Two: Ms. Lusker announced early voting will be taking place tomorrow October
25" at Homer Cole Community Center from 9:00 AM to 4:00 PM.

Item Three: County Counselor Jim Emerson discussed scheduling when it comes to the
public hearing regarding the land annexation. He mentioned November 14™ as a potential
day for the public hearing which leaves a couple of days to get documents together with
the possibility for final decision on November 18", but that final decision has to be made
by November 19™. Commissioner Wood asked if this meeting can be at night or does it
have to be in the daytime and Mr. Emerson stated that is up to the Commissioners.
Commissioner Wood asked why they cannot have a special meeting that night so that
people who work can attend and Commissioner Moody stated that they could.
Commissioner Wood asked if they should have the meeting on the third floor due to the
amount of people that will be present.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC CONTINUED

Item Four: Ms. Phyllis Polnack addressed the Commissioners. She stated a potential
problem she could see is that November 14" is Mulberry’s City Council meeting night.
Mr. Emerson asked if they meet on a Friday night and Ms. Polnack stated she thought it
was a Tuesday night.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Four: Commissioner Wood asked if they could have the meeting before November
14" Commissioner Moody stated for them to keep it on the night of November 14", Mr.
Emerson stated if they are going to do a night meeting they should try for Thursday
November 13" at 5:30 AM in the courtroom and he will contact Mr. Joshua Albin
regarding this and will confirm that next week.

Item Five: Commissioner Wood asked if there is anything the public should be aware of
when it comes to this public meeting and Mr. Emerson answered. Mr. Emerson stated the
only thing he will say is that this is the chance to discuss the land annexation.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Mr. Emerson mentioned he was requested to provide some information
regarding county finances due to the boiler project. Mr. Emerson provided the
Commissioners with a handout that included details about the finances. He explained the
handout and the finances. Mr. Emerson stated he reached out to the auditor regarding the
transfer of money in to the Risk Management Fund to reimburse other funds done several
years ago in 2015-2017 timeframe. He stated the auditor said they have options there of
transferring money back to reimburse those funds. He mentioned that he does not believe
they will need to make a motion by the end of this month for transfer of money to EMS
but that they may next month. Commissioner Wood asked about the EMS finance and
Mr. Emerson answered. Mr. Emerson stated he appreciates Ms. Bobbi Wicker with the
Clerk’s Office for providing him with all the motions from the previous years when they
had to transfer money with the Risk Management account. Commissioner Wood asked
what is projected for carryover in the General Fund and Mr. Emerson explained.

Page 4 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item Two: Mr. Emerson presented the Commissioners with a draft of travel policy and
stated this does not have to be for approval today. He explained the policy to the
Commissioners. Mr. Emerson stated the current travel policy given to the county by
consultant he believes is weak and needs upgraded.

Item Three: Mr. Emerson mentioned they received the signed contract between JT
Construction and the county regarding the storage building. He provided a copy to the
Commissioners for approval and explained the contract. Mr. Emerson pointed out an area
of the contract that states no change orders approved unless first approved by project
manager and secondly by Commissioners during a meeting. Commissioner Moody asked
if the total cost is listed at $69,300.00 and Mr. Emerson confirmed. Commissioner
Moody asked if this was the low bid and Mr. Emerson confirmed.

On motion (25-431) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the contract between Crawford County and JT Construction for the storage
building project and authorizing the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Wood, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION CONTINUED

Item Three: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 15
minutes to discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client
Relationship.

On motion (25-432) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding eminent domain which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson
present. The open meeting will resume at 11:34 A.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:19 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:26 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Item Four: IT Director Brandon Spaur requested an executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

Page 5 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

On motion (25-433) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to discuss
job performance pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1),
to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County

Counselor Jim Emerson, and IT Director Brandon Spaur attended the executive session.

The open meeting will resume at 11:37 AM. The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:27 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:34 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Four: Mr. Emerson mentioned health insurance was discussed on Tuesday and that
they needed to get additional information exclusive to employees so they would need to
have an executive session regarding this. Commissioner Wood asked if we can bring Ms.
Randi Ryan in as well as Ms. Lusker.

EXECUTIVE SESSION CONTINUED

Item Five: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 15
minutes to discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-434) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
insurance pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to
protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County
Counselor Jim Emerson, County Clerk Lisa Lusker, and Director of Fiscal Services
Randi Ryan attended the executive session. The open meeting will resume at 11:51 AM.
The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:36 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:51 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Five: Mr. Emerson discussed there are a couple of decision that need to be made
regarding health, dental, and vision insurance. He mentioned they may wait on dental
until they receive additional information. Mr. Emerson stated the HSA deductible due to

Page 6 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

IRS regulations and that the decision that needs to be made is that Bukaty is
recommending increase in individual stop loss from $125,000 to $150,000 which
provides a savings in the quote of around $160,000 to $167,000. Commissioner Wood
asked if this can be changed from one year to the next and Mr. Emerson confirmed but
that during the year they are in their contract.

On motion (25-435) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the increase in health insurance individual stop loss to $150,000.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Six: Commissioner Blair brought up the boiler project. He discussed the finances
Mr. Emerson provided and the uncertainty of EMS funds. Mr. Emerson provided some
additional finance information and that they will have to at least supplement EMS
$200,000 for the remainder of the year. Commissioner Blair stated with the situation in
finances he believes it would be best to go with low bid and if changes need to be made
that the company see how they can address those changes in a cost saving way during the
process. Commissioner Blair stated in his opinion if they are looking at lay offs he
believes they need to go the cheapest route on this project because he does not think it is
fair to lay someone off because of this. Commissioner Moody stated they are getting tight
finance wise and that he likes the idea of going with the lowest bid. Commissioner Wood
stated his concern is that they have always had trouble with the boiler system at the
judicial center but that the high bid company presented the design and changes in their
bid packet. Commissioner Wood stated he would like to go with Design Mechanical.
Commissioner Moody asked Mr. Emerson how much higher Design Mechanical was on
their bid and Mr. Emerson answered that they were roughly $24,000 in difference.
Commissioner Blair stated the other thing he has thought about was with the possible
expansion of the judicial center if they could financially fit some of the additional needs
into that budget to make things work better once they expand. Commissioner Blair stated
at this point he thinks they should go with the lowest bid, keep the heat running and
address issues if they can. Commissioner Wood gave some information regarding the
boilers. Commissioner Blair discussed boiler size and efficiency. Commissioner Blair
mentioned the bids including the same type of boilers.

On motion (25-436) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
accept CDL Electric as the low bid for the Judicial Center boiler project.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair and Moody

Nays: Commissioner Wood

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Seven: Commissioner Wood stated he is going to talk to Road and Bridge
Coordinator Alyssa Edwards about watching Road and Bridge financially. Mr. Emerson
discussed finances with Road and Bridge budget and stated he thinks the budget is solid

Page 7 of 8



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

but that he really will not know until the end of the month. Commissioner Wood asked if
they can pull out of the special fund with Road and Bridge to purchase salt and Mr.
Emerson confirmed. Commissioner Blair asked if they have done salt bids in the past and
Commissioner Wood explained.

Item Eight: Commissioner Moody asked where they are at with asphalting and chip and
sealing and Commissioner Wood stated chip and seal and the smoke and seal are done
but some asphalting is still being done. Commissioner Wood stated he will have Ms.
Edwards make copies regarding the asphalting and chip and sealing so he can provide
them to the Commissioners.

Item Nine: Mr. Emerson stated he will not be present at the meeting on November 7th.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: October 28, 2025- 9:45 AM Work Session with Director of Fiscal Services
Randi Ryan to discuss ARPA.

Item Two: October 31, 2025- 8:30 AM Work Session to sign bills and payroll vouchers.
Item Three: October 31, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with SEK Recycling Center.
ANNOUNCEMENTS:

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the October 24, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at 12:13
PM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 10/24/25 1:50 PM/amended BKW 10/27/25 10:00 AM

Page 8 of 8



